
Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea 
 

1973-1982 
Concluded at Montego Bay, Jamaica on 10 December 1982 

 
 

Document:- 
A/CONF.62/SR.177

 
 

177th Plenary meeting 
 

Extract from the Official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of  
the Sea, Volume XVI (Summary Records, Plenary, First and Second Committees, as well as 

Documents of the Conference, Eleventh Session) 
 

 

 

 

 

Copyright © United Nations 
2009 



177th meeting-28 April 1982 135

177th meeting
Wednesday, 28 April 1982, at 11 a.m.

President: Mr. B. RABETAFIKA (Madagascar)

Consideration of the subject-matter referred to in paragraph 3
of General Assembly resolution 3067 (XXVIII) of 16
November 1973 (continued)

STATEMENTS ON THE REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT IN ACCORD-
ANCE WITH RULE 37 OF THE RULES OF PROCEDURE

I. Mr. de SOTO (Peru), speaking as Chairman of the Group
of 77, said that he wished to comment in particular on the
proposals contained in annexes IV and V of the report of the
President (A/CONF.62/L.132). The Group of 77 was willing
in principle to accept those proposals, although to do so
would mean making concessions, the magnitude of which
should be recognized by other members. The draft resolution
in annex IV was not in the Group's interests, and the Group
would like to see it brought further into line with the basic
parameters of the convention. Its main concerns, which had
already been expressed directly to the President, related to the
size of the pioneer area (para. 1 (e) of draft resolution II) and
the status of the Enterprise, as outlined in paragraph 9 (a)
and (b).
1. Turning to annex V, he observed that any amendment to
article 150 needed careful consideration, because that article
contained the guidelines under which the Authority would
exercise its discretionary powers for the management of the
Area—powers which, incidentally, were much narrower than
the Group of 77 would like them to be. Efforts had been made
throughout the years to reflect in the draft convention the
complex assemblage of interests, objectives and safeguards
needed to make the Authority's policy consistent with the
concept that the Area and its resources were the common her-
itage of mankind. The Group of 77 did not wish to consider
any amendment which might change the Authority into a
mere instrument for promoting productivity, and felt that the
proposed amendments to article 150 gave undue weight to
productivity at the expense of safeguards and precautions.
With regard to the reformulation of article 155, he said that
the Group of 77 attached much importance to that article and
would resist any substantive change; the amendment in ques-
tion, however, did not affect the fundamental provisions of
the convention and should cause no serious concern. As for
the amendment to article 161, it merely put into words what
had always been the intention of the developing countries,
namely that the largest consumer should be a member of the
Council.

3. In conclusion, he said that the Group of 77 might be
prepared to accept all the proposed amendments to which he
had referred, but only if its own remaining problems in regard
to the convention could be satisfactorily solved.

4. Mr. KOROMA (Sierra Leone) said that his delegation
had understood that the so-called parallel system of explora-
tion and exploitation laid down in the convention would place
the Enterprise on an equal footing with other entities involved
in sea-bed mining. The new draft resolution II in annex IV of
the report of the President (A/CONF.62/L. 132),'however,
would create an unbalanced and inequitable regime. Its legal
effect would be to restore' legitimacy to the unilateral national
legislation already enacted by certain countries, namely
France, the United Kingdom, the United States and the
Federal Republic of Germany, authorizing and regulating the
mining of polymetallic nodules outside the provisions of the
convention. That legislation called for the reciprocal recogni-

tion of authorizations issued by the States concerned, and also
dealt with the resolution of potential conflicts concerning the
size and shape of unexplored areas. The Conference had
declared all such legislation illegal, but the proposed draft
resolution II, by implication, recognized and legitimized it.
The draft resolution also made provision for exploration
before the entry into force of the convention and for the reso-
lution of conflicts with respect to overlapping claims. It would
thus place certain countries in a privileged position and
prevent the parallel system from coming into effect, at least
for many years, and perhaps for ever if the privileged coun-
tries decided to set up a cartel against which the Enterprise
would not be able to compete. Paragraphs 1 and 9, in particu-
lar, were weighted against the Enterprise. Moreover, no pro-
vision had been made forbidding the use of flags of conveni-
ence.

5. In short, his delegation thought that the draft resolution
was fraught with undesirable consequences for the Sea-Bed
Authority, and that its adoption would be too high a price to
pay for consensus on the convention.

6. Mr. CALERO RODRIGUES (Brazil) said that his dele-
gation supported the position taken by the Group of 77 on
annexes IV and V of document A/CONF.62/L.132. It shared
the Group's doubts about the proposed changes, but believed
that if other problems were resolved it could accept them as
part of the high price which had to be paid for consensus on
the convention. The words "the development of the
resources of the Area", which were proposed as a new sub-
paragraph (a) for article 150 (annex V) should be understood
as a clarification of the existing text of the article. The propo-
sal to apply to the Review Conference the decision-making
procedure used in the Third United Nations Conference on
the Law of the Sea itself (annex V, amendment to article 155,
para. 3) might be acceptable since the experience at the
current session was proving that the procedure did in fact
work. The amendment to article 161 really made no
difference, because no one had doubted that the largest con-
sumer of minerals from the Area would be represented on the
Council.

7. His delegation had no difficulty with the modifications
proposed in annex HI, since they only served to make more
explicit the idea that help should be given to any developing
countries affected by changes in world mineral prices. The
amendments in annexes I and II related to participation.
Those in annex I were not significantly different from the orig-
inal texts but the proposal, originally submitted by Belgium,
to delete paragraph 6 of annex IX, article 4, of the draft con-
vention would require a substantial change. That paragraph
was very important to his delegation. The paragraph could
perhaps be better phrased, but it was in an essential provision
and he doubted whether there was really widespread support
for its deletion, as the President argued in his report. His dele-
gation objected strongly, but would not protest further if the
proposed change was a necessary condition for the achieve-
ment of consensus.

8. Mr. KOZYREV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics)
said that his delegation normally shared the views of the
Group of 77 and therefore had no difficulty in accepting the
proposals in A/CONF.62/L.132, annex III. The proposals
should allay the concern of those developing countries which
were land-based producers, including a number of African



136 Eleventh Session—Plenary Meetings

countries, and thus make it easier for them to sign the conven-
tion.

9. Draft resolution II (A/CONF.62/L.132, annex IV) on
preparatory investment protection was a different matter. His
delegation had repeatedly stated that it saw no justification for
such a proposal, since State's access to the resources of the
Area was adequately protected by Part XI and the related
annexes of the draft convention. However, in response to
requests from the United States and other Western nations,
the USSR had agreed that it would not object to discussing
the matter if the document which emerged was compatible
with the provisions of the draft convention concerning the
exploitation of mineral resources in the international Area.
That reservation had been made because of fears that the
adoption of such a proposal would have the effect of exempt-
ing a small group of States from the provisions of the conven-
tion, so that the rights and obligations of those States under
the convention would be different from their rights and obli-
gations under the draft resolution.

10. The text of the convention made a clear connection
between the rights and the obligations of States which desired,
whether or not through appointed agents, to obtain contracts
for exploration and exploitation of the common heritage. But
the States whose capital investments would be protected
under the draft resolution in annex IV would also have the
rights granted to them in accordance with the convention.
Moreover, the new draft resolution appeared to countenance
a situation in which some States might be able to obtain rights
even if they had not signed the convention. Exploration rights
should be granted on the basis of a contract, and it would be
only fair to insist that States which wished to receive excep-
tional rights under the convention should sign it, though he
agreed that signature was not the same thing as ratification.

11. The effect of the draft resolution would be that some
States, including the Soviet Union, France and India, would
have to sign the convention, whereas others, such as the
United States, the Federal Republic of Germany, Japan and
the United Kingdom would not have to sign. Such a provision
discriminated against States which were protected only if they
signed the convention. It was true that paragraph 8 (c) of the
draft resolution provided that no plan of work for exploration
and exploitation could be approved unless the certifying State
was a party to the convention. Belgium and the Netherlands,
for example, could certainly become parties, but the trouble
was that their contributions as set by the scale of assessments
would be insufficient and their plans would therefore not be
certified. The likelihood was, therefore, that the Federal
Republic of Germany, France, Japan, the United Kingdom
and the United States of America did not intend to establish
the Authority or to recognize the Area as the common heri-
tage of mankind. If that was incorrect, he hoped that the
representatives of those States would tell him so, and confirm
that their Governments intended to sign the convention and
submit it to their parliaments for ratification. The delegation
of the Soviet Union would thereupon declare that its Govern-
ment would sign the convention and submit it to the Supreme
Soviet for ratification. It should then not be difficult to find a
formula which would put all parties concerned in preparatory
investment protection procedures on an equal footing.

12. In a memorandum of 21 April 1982 (A/CONF.
62/L.133, annex) the Legal Counsel had replied to the
request of the Special Representative of the Secretary-
General for a legal opinion on certain matters connected with
the designation of pioneer investors. As indicated in his own
memorandum to the President (A/CONF.62/L.133), he
found that reply unsatisfactory. He had also asked in that
memorandum that the reply of the Secretariat to the questions
posed in it should be issued as a document of the Conference
and he hoped that that document would be forthcoming.

13. Annex V of the President's report proposed an amend-
ment to Part XI of the convention. Although in principle he
was opposed to amendments to the convention, he would in a
spirit of compromise not object to the proposed amendments
to articles 150, 155 and 161.
14. Mr. ZULETA (Special Representative of the Secretary-
General), speaking in rsply to the representative of the Soviet
Union, said that the Legal Counsel had indicated that a reply
to the letter dated 22 April 1982 addressed by the delegation
of the Soviet Union to the President (A/CONF.62/L.133)
would be sent during the course of the day; it would be distri-
buted as a Conference document.
15. Mr. MWANANG'ONZE (Zambia) said that an issue
which had not yet been resolved concerned the size of the
pioneer area. The industrial countries continued to insist that
150,000 km2 was the minimum which they could accept,
allowing for a risk factor of 20 per cent that the investor might
not find a commercially viable mine site on a smaller area.
However, studies made in the United Kingdom and by the
United States Geological Survey had indicated that 40,000
km2 was adequate for an exploitable mine. Unilateral United
States legislation on the law of the sea stipulated that such an
area should not exceed 80,000 km2. The Japanese delegation
had suggested to the Conference an area of 60,000 km2 plus a
20 per cent risk factor, making a total of 72,000 km2. His dele-
gation therefore failed to understand why the representatives
of certain industrial countries should continue to support an
indefensible figure unless their true intention was to monopol-
ize prime areas of the ocean floor with high abundances of
manganese concentrates. Under paragraph 9 (a) of draft reso-
lution II (A/CONF.62/L.132, annex IV) five Western consor-
tia would have access to such areas. For that reason and
because such a development would provide momentum for a
cartel of the developed countries with which the land-based
developing countries would not be able to complete in setting
the prices of the metals produced, his delegation was opposed
to a size of 150,000 km2 for pioneer areas.
16. Moreover, it seemed strange that there should be such
haste to start production at a time when there was no shortage
of the metals in question. In addition, the provisions for
surrender of portions of the pioneer area meant that the relin-
quishment of 50 per cent of the pioneer area need not be
completed until eight years from the date of allocation. That
period was too long and would strengthen the position of
those who wished to retain their hold on the resources of the
sea which were the common heritage of mankind.
17. His delegation's understanding of paragraph 9 (a) was
that it would suspend or freeze the parallel system, which
might therefore not come into operation until the twenty-
eighth year when, if all went well, the Enterprise would have
its eighth mine site. Such a provision was unfair.

18. His delegation had rioted that the amendments in docu-
ments A/CONF.62/L.104, L.121 and L.122 had been with-
drawn. Certain of those amendments were, however, being
revived during the current consultations. His delegation
would not entertain further discussion of any amendment
which had been withdrawn.
19. Mr. TIWARI (Singapore) said that his delegation, like
many others, was not satisfied with the draft convention as it
stood but nevertheless supported it out of a desire to see order
and peace in the oceans, and a reduction of friction and
violence. It was for that reason that delegations had subordi-
nated their national interest to the common good.
20. Viewed in that context, the annexes to the President's
report (A/CONF.62/L. 132) should bring the Conference closer
to its goal. There was no need for further discussion of
annexes I, II and III, as they represented compromises which
improved the prospects for consensus. He was in full agree-
ment with what the Chairman of the Group of 77 had said on



177th meeting-28 April 1982 137

annex IV, the effect of which would be to bring everything
within the framework of the convention. That was a positive
development. The Conference had always opposed any unilat-
eral regime for sea-bed mining development. If free enter-
prise were to be permitted to operate outside the convention
the land-based producers would be adversely affected; pro-
duction limitations were essential for those countries. His
delegation did not like the concept of preparatory investment,
but it was the price which had to be paid to persuade a group
of countries to sign the convention. The changes made in
annex IV, however, advanced the work of the Conference.
The figure relating to the size of the pioneer area had come
from studies made by the Secretariat. The provisions in para-
graph 12 of draft resolution II, relating to training and tech-
nology, were important.
21. The modifications to document A/CONF.62/L.781 pro-
posed in annex V were not so drastic as to be outside the
parameters laid down by the Conference. Those relating to
article 150 did not unbalance the article. Similarly, it was not
asking too much to require that the consensus procedure
should apply at the Review Conference, as proposed in the
reformulation of article 155, paragraph 3. As for the proposed
change to article 161, there was no doubt that the United
States would be a member of the Council.
22. In conclusion, he observed that while Part XI had occu-
pied an inordinate amount of the Conference's time, there
were many other provisions which were equally important to
delegations, such as, for example, the right of transit specified
in Part X.
23. Mr. AL-ATASSI (Syrian Arab Republic) said that the
results achieved at the current session were not universally
satisfactory to delegations. Nevertheless, acceptable formulas
covering many issues had been found.
24. The issues of security and sovereignty were of capital
importance to his country. It was for that reason that it had
been a sponsor of document A/CONF.62/L.117 concerning
article 21, paragraph 1 (h). The sponsors had agreed not to
press for a vote on it as their contribution to an over-all agree-
ment. His delegation still considered, however, that the rights
of coastal States to take needed measures in accordance with
article 19 to preserve their security and sovereignty in accord-
ance with international custom and the spirit of international
law would not be affected. He hoped that the President would
attach importance to that aspect in his concluding statement.

25. The formula proposed for the participation of national
liberation movements did not meet the aspirations of most of
the participants in the Conference but nevertheless
represented an important step in the direction of the victory
of the peoples those movements represented over foreign
domination and exploitation. It was the hope of his delegation
that the convention would be equitable to all mankind and a
step towards the institution of a new international economic
order.
26. Mr. BALLAH (Trinidad and Tobago) said that, in the
view of his delegation, the question of the treatment to be
accorded to preparatory investment in pioneer activities relat-
ing to polymetallic nodules was the last outstanding issue.
Acceptance of annex IV of document A/CONF.62/L.132 by
the Group of 77 would be a major concession inasmuch as it
would amount to recognizing investments and claims made
prior to the adoption of the convention—and, in all but one
case, following unilateral national legislation and pursuant to
assertions that freedom of the high seas meant freedom to
mine deep sea-bed polymetallic nodules: the vast majority of
States held otherwise. Activities carried out pursuant to unilat-

1 See Official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on the
Law of the Sea, vol. XV (United Nations publication, Sales No.
E.83.V.4).

eral legislation were illegal; such activities could be validly
undertaken only within an internationally agreed framework.
27. His delegation considered that the following rewording
of the last two sentences of paragraph 7 (b) of annex IV
would express more clearly what seemed to be intended:

"Every registered pioneer investor shall pay, upon the
approval of his plan of work for exploration and exploita-
tion, an annual fee of $US 1 million commencing from the
date of the allocation of the pioneer area."

28. With regard to paragraph 8 (a) of annex IV, his delega-
tion considered that the link between the last sentence and
what had preceded it should be more specific. He therefore
suggested the following wording for the last sentence:

"If the Authority is satisfied that the application for the
plan of work meets these requirements, it shall approve the
application."

29. Further, in order to correct what appeared to be an
imbalance in the development of the parallel system, it might
be necessary to make certain changes in paragraph 9 (a) so as
to ensure that exploitation of reserved areas could take place
during the interim period whenever fewer reserved sites than
non-reserved sites were under exploitation.
30. His delegation supported in principle the position of the
Group of 77 as stated by its Chairman. It might therefore be
prepared to compromise by accepting the President's proposal
in document A/CONF.62/L.132-although that proposal
amounted to a retreat from a position of principle of the
Group of 77—on condition that no further changes, or, in the
extreme, only minimal changes were made to Part XI and
annex III of document A/CONF.62/L.78.
31. Mr. HYERA (United Republic of Tanzania) said that
his delegation did not support the proposals for preparatory
investment protection in annex IV to the President's report
(A/CONF.62/L.132), given the adequate guarantees pro-
vided to the industrialized States in the convention itself. Only
recently, in connection with a decree enacted in the Soviet
Union, the Group of 77 had restated its position on unilateral
national legislation concerning the international sea-bed area;
it had protested against the decree because it considered that
such legislation and the activities encouraged by it were in
violation of international law. If the Group were to accept the
provisions on preparatory investment it would be reversing its
own stand, and not only legalizing violations of the law but
rewarding the violators.
32. The original purpose of preparatory investment protec-
tion had been to compensate those who had spent large sums
on technological development and preliminary exploration of
resources, but as drafted, the preparatory investment
protection provisions of annex IV simply allocated rights to
States by name, and all that the States had to do was to certify
that their entities fulfilled the requisite conditions. He pointed
out that it had originally been stated that only six mine sites
would be available for exploitation, but new data had been
produced purporting to show that it would be possible to have
20 or more mine sites, each of 150,000 km2 allegedly without
affecting the production ceiling. He doubted very much
whether, after the eight mine sites currently envisaged had
been allocated, there would be room for any other operators,
and in his view, the purpose of preparatory investment pro-
tection was not to protect preparatory investments, but to give
privileges to a few powers.
33. He saw little value in the suggestion that as part of the
compromise package, the rules of procedure of the Third
United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea should be
imposed on the Review Conference.
34. He hoped that his pessimistic view of the implications of
the proposals to which he had referred would be proved



138 Eleventh Session-Plenary Meetings

wrong, since that would mean that the Conference would
have achieved its goal.
35. Mr. SCOTLAND (Guyana) said that the provisions on
the treatment of observers in annex I of the President's report
were an improvement on the previous text and acceptable to
his delegation. In that annex the provisions concerning
national liberation movements in the proposed draft resolu-
tion IV did not fully meet his expectations but were neverthe-
less also acceptable.
36. He understood that the amendment proposed in annex
II would facilitate participation in the convention by interna-
tional organizations. He could well understand that land-
based producers needed reassurance about their future after
sea-bed operations began, and therefore supported the
amendment to draft resolution I (A/CONF.62/L.132, an-
nex III) contained in document A/CONF.62/L.94.
37. He noted the proposal in annex V to add a subparagraph
(a) to article 150. He thought that the proposed subparagraph
was covered by the existing subparagraph (/i). A number of
delegations had expressed reservations regarding the formula-
tion of article 155, paragraph 3; the text proposed in annex V
was certainly not the most desirable, though it might well be
the best attainable. He was not convinced of the need for the
proposed amendment to article 161, since the effect would be
to give one State a permanent seat on the Council.
38. He was also unhappy about the preparatory investment
protection provisions; in his view, draft resolution II
(A/CONF.62/L.132, annex IV) did not give the Enterprise
the competitive edge which it should have by right. The draft
resolution gave little encouragement to those States which
considered that the majority of mankind in the developing
countries were represented by the Enterprise, because the
Enterprise would have only one mine site while the few States
in the other groups would certainly have six or seven. How-
ever, he understood that what was practically attainable might
not be acceptable to all; that was the case with draft reso-
lution II, but he would not raise any formal objection to the
President's proposals.
39. Mr. KRAL (Czechoslovakia) said that he had no
difficulties with annexes I, II, III and V to the President's
report, but he did have misgivings about draft resolution II
(annex IV), which divided States into groups, one of which,
made up of Belgium, Canada, the Federal Republic of Ger-
many, Italy, the Netherlands, the United Kingdom and the
United States, could, under paragraph 1 (a) of the draft
resolution, enjoy certain rights even without signing the con-
vention, while Japan had the privilege of choosing to operate
in category (i) or category (ii), or both, of pioneer investors.
The developing States, on the other hand, had to sign the con-
vention in order to acquire preparatory investment protection
status. He understood the reason why the categories in para-
graph 1 (a) had been devised but he did not understand how
some States could enjoy rights, and protection for their com-
panies, without signing the convention; the consequence
would be that those States could continue exploiting the sea-
bed resources without any obligation to the international
community, even though what they were exploiting was the
common heritage of mankind.
40. He found the provisions in paragraph 12 (b) of draft
resolution II regarding the obligation of the certifying State to
provide funds for the Enterprise contradictory and ambigu-
ous. The funds should be provided by all States whose com-
panies were the entities mentioned in paragraph 1 (a) (ii). He
was concerned that the effect of the resolution would be to
create difficulties for the future when the Authority started
functioning. Many delegations had made it clear that they
wanted the Authority to start operating as soon as possible;
however, without the States mentioned in paragraph 1 (a) (ii),
which could continue exploitation without signing the con-
vention, the Authority would not be able to function, and

those States would be able to postpone their decision on sign-
ing the convention until they were actually ready to start
mining. They might hold the international community to ran-
som and demand special privileges as a reward for signing the
convention. He remembered the representatives of some
States saying that they did not need the convention to start
sea-bed mining and that their navies were strong enough to
protect their interests. The Conference should give States an
incentive to sign and ratify the convention as soon as possible.
All States, whether industrialized or developing, should be in
the same position and should have to sign the convention in
order to enjoy its protection; loopholes such as flags of con-
venience should be eliminated.
41. Mr. ROSENNE (Israel) said that his delegation could
not accept the statement in paragraph 9 of the President's
report (A/CONF.62/L.132) that there was substantial sup-
port for the amendments proposed in document A/
CONF.62/L.101, or that their incorporation in the final
documents of the Conference would offer a better prospect of
general agreement in the long run. The draft resolution in that
document would permit the so-called Palestine Liberation
Organization (PLO), under the guise of a national liberation
movement, to sign the final act. That would be wrong and
unjustified. The draft resolution was extraneous to the law of
the sea and could not be regarded as part of any package
dealing with any aspect of that law, or of the convention.
42. If the PLO was permitted to sign the final act, it would
benefit by the amendment to article 156 of the convention
also proposed in document A/CONF.62/L.101. That again
was completely unacceptable; it was improper for such a body
to participate in the Authority in any manner whatsoever.
43. His delegation accordingly reserved its entire freedom of
action in that respect. In conclusion, he drew attention to his
formal communication to the President on the subject
(A/CONF.62/L.138).
44. Mr. ZINCHENKO (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic)
said that he found it difficult to accept the draft resolution
proposed in annex IV to the President's report
(A/CONF.62/L.132). Under that resolution, the socialist
States of Eastern Europe would be discriminated against not
only vis-a-vis Western countries, but also in relation to the
private companies of those countries. What was more, those
companies would be able to take advantage of flag-of-
convenience provisions, so that two or three large United
States firms might become pioneer investors with all the rights
which that involved, and :he United States might then refuse
to sign the convention, and thus evade its obligations, includ-
ing its contribution to the budget of Authority. All that those
companies would have to do to safeguard their status as
pioneer investors would be to use as a flag of convenience the
flag of any other Western State mentioned in paragraph 1 (a)
(ii) of the draft resolution. It was true that in market-economy
countries it was not easy for private companies to change their
nationality, and that paragraph 8 (c) expressly provided that
no plan of work for exploration and exploitation should be
approved unless the certifying State was a party to the con-
vention. What was not clear, however, was who would certify
the plan if the Authority had not been established; moreover,
private companies were not likely to ask for certification if
they already had access to the sea-bed. He could find nothing
in the draft resolution to dispel his misgivings about such
questions.
45. He shared the views expressed by the representative of
the Soviet Union, and hoped that the matters raised would be
taken into account in the linal version of the draft resolution
which, he understood, the President was preparing in inten-
sive consultations.
46. He found it unacceptable that private corporations
should be referred to by name in an international document
adopted by an international conference. The decision regard-



178th meeting-28 April 1982 139

ing the status to be given to individual companies was one for
States and not for conferences.

47. Mr. POWELL-JONES (United Kingdom) rejected the
suggestion by the representative of the Soviet Union that the
United Kingdom did not intend to sign the convention. His
Government had taken no final position, and would not do so
until the convention had been completed. His Government
believed that the adoption by consensus of a generally agreed
convention would be greatly facilitated by the President's
technique of reporting the results of negotiations undertaken
in accordance with rule 37. He noticed that negotiations were
continuing on a number of matters.

48. He could accept the provisions on participation set out
in annexes I and II of the President's report (A/CONF.62/
L.132), although he considered it essential that satisfactory
arrangements should be made for the protection of prepara-
tory investment. The draft resolution in annex IV of the
President's report was the fruit of long and difficult negotia-
tions but still contained some provisions which his delegation
found to be unnecessarily restrictive. However, in a spirit of
compromise and in the interest of reaching over-all agreement
on a convention, he was ready to accept it and hoped it would
be accepted by other delegations in the same spirit.

49. Annex V proposed three amendments to Part XI of the
convention which he could accept, although he believed that
further changes were still needed. He hoped that the discus-
sions which the President was holding would result in further
improvements, particularly in relation to the transfer of tech-

nology, and that the draft convention would thus become
acceptable to all delegations.

50. Mr. AL-WITRI (Iraq), speaking in exercise of the right
of reply, said that a letter circulated as a document of the
Conference (A/CONF.62/L.138) mentioned the amendments
proposed by Iraq in document A/CONF.62/L. 101, which
had been adopted by consensus. The initial proposal of the
Group of 77 had been to consider national liberation move-
ments as parties to the convention and to give them all the
rights of States, because the sea-bed was the common heritage
of mankind, but the Group had accepted a compromise which
would give national liberation movements observer status in
the Authority with the right to sign the final act as observers.
That had been approved by the entire Conference. The letter
in document A/CONF.62/L.138 was not part of the. will of
the Conference, and the entity which had produced it did not
represent a peace-loving country; on the contrary, it had been
condemned by the international community as a violator of
the principles of the United Nations. That entity had there-
fore no right to become a party to the convention or to be a
member of the Authority.

51. Mr. ROSENNE (Israel), speaking in exercise of the right
of reply, said that, as for peace-loving States, it was Iraq
which had unleashed an atrocious war on one of its neigh-
bours. He referred representatives to the statement on peace-
loving qualities being made in the General Assembly at that
very moment by the representative of Israel.

The meeting rose at 1.10p.m.


	Main Menu
	List of Documents
	How to use List of Documents

	Master File
	How to use Master File

	Other Materials
	I. Preface
	II. Document Symbols
	III. Full-text Search
	IV. Tables
	A. GA Resolutions
	B. Conference Sessions
	C. Documents by Session
	D. Contents by Volume
	E. Negotiating Texts
	F. Chronology - LOS



	Main: 


